
- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 

MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 29TH JULY 2025 
AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
 PARKSIDE SUITE, PARKSIDE, MARKET STREET, BROMSGROVE, 

WORCESTERSHIRE, B61 8DA 
 

    

 
MEMBERS: Councillors H. J. Jones (Chairman), M. Marshall (Vice-Chairman), 

A. Bailes, S. J. Baxter, J. Clarke, D. J. A. Forsythe, E. M. S. Gray, 
R. E. Lambert, S. R. Peters, J. Robinson and J. D. Stanley 
 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes  
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 
To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other 
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm 
the nature of those interests. 
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Planning 
Committee held on 23rd June 2025. (Pages 7 - 12) 
 

4. Updates to planning applications reported at the meeting (to be circulated 
prior to the start of the meeting)  
 

5. 24/00960/FUL - Proposed Battery Energy Storage System (BESS) and 
associated infrastructure. Land Off Illey Lane, Hunnington. Mr. G. Watson 
(Grenergy Renewables UK) (Pages 13 - 80) 
 
 

.           Public Document Pack           .



- 2 - 

6. To consider any Urgent business, details of which have been notified to the 
Assistant Director of Legal, Democratic and Procurement Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting.  
 
 
 
 

 J. Leach  
Chief Executive  

Parkside 
Market Street 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B61 8DA 
 
21st July 2025 

 



- 3 - 

If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact 
Pauline Ross 

Democratic Services Officer 
 

Parkside, Market Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8DA 
Tel: 01527 881406 

Email: p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
 
 
 

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers, 
please do not hesitate to contact the officer named above.  
 
Please note that this is a public meeting and will be live streamed for  
general access via the Council’s YouTube channel. 
 
You are able to see and hear the livestream of the meeting from the 
Committee Pages of the website, alongside the agenda for the meeting. 
  
 
PUBLIC SPEAKING  
 
The usual process for public speaking at meetings of the Planning 
Committee will continue to be followed subject to some adjustments.  
For further details a copy of the amended Planning Committee 
Procedure Rules can be found on the Council’s website.  
 
The process approved by the Council for public speaking at meetings of 
the Planning Committee is (subject to the discretion and control of the 
Chair), as summarised below:-  
 
1) Introduction of application by Chair  
2) Officer presentation of the report  
3) Public Speaking - in the following order: -  

a. objector (or agent/spokesperson on behalf of objectors);  
b. applicant, or their agent (or supporter);  
c. Parish Council representative (if applicable);  
d. Ward Councillor  
 

Each party will have up to a maximum of 3 minutes to speak, subject to 
the discretion of the Chair.  
 
Speakers will be called in the order they have notified their interest in 
speaking to the Democratic Services Officer and will be invited to 
unmute their microphone and address the Committee face-to-face or via 
Microsoft Teams.  
 
4) Members’ questions to the Officers and formal debate / determination.   
 

mailto:p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk


- 4 - 

Notes:  
1) Anyone wishing to address the Planning Committee on applications 

on this agenda must notify the Democratic Services Officer on 01527 
881406 or by email to p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
by 12 noon on Friday 25th July 2025.  

 
2) Advice and assistance will be provided to public speakers as to how 

to access the meeting and those registered to speak will be invited to 
participate face-to-face or via a Microsoft Teams invitation.  

 
Provision has been made in the amended Planning Committee 
procedure rules for public speakers who cannot access the meeting 
via Microsoft Teams, and those speakers will be given the 
opportunity to submit their speech in writing to be read out by an 
officer at the meeting.  
 
Please take care when preparing written comments to ensure that the 
reading time will not exceed three minutes. Any speakers wishing to 
submit written comments must do so by 12 noon on Friday 25th July 
2025.  
 

3) Reports on all applications will include a summary of the responses 
received from consultees and third parties, an appraisal of the main 
planning issues, the case officer’s presentation and a 
recommendation. All submitted plans and documentation for each 
application, including consultee responses and third party 
representations, are available to view in full via the Public Access 
facility on the Council’s website www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 

 
4) It should be noted that, in coming to its decision, the Committee can  
     only take into account planning issues, namely policies contained in   
     the Bromsgrove District Plan (the Development Plan) and other  
     material considerations, which include Government Guidance and  
     other relevant policies published since the adoption of the  
     Development Plan and the “environmental factors” (in the broad  
     sense) which affect the site.  
 

5) Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when the 
      Committee might have to move into closed session to consider  
      exempt or confidential information. For agenda items that are exempt  
      the public are excluded and for any such items the live stream will be  
      suspended and that part of the meeting will not be recorded. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/


- 5 - 

 
INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC  
 
Access to Information  
The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain 
documents. Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further 
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act.  
 
 You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before the 

date of the meeting.  

 You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting.  

 You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on which 
reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date of the 
meeting. These are listed at the end of each report.  

 An electronic register stating the names and addresses and electoral areas 
of all Councillors with details of the membership of all Committees etc. is 
available on our website.  

 A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to items to 
be considered in public will be made available to the public attending 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its Committees/Boards.  

 You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council has 
delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers concerned, 
as detailed in the Council’s Constitution, Scheme of Delegation.  

 
You can access the following documents:  
 

 Meeting Agendas 

 Meeting Minutes 
 The Council’s Constitution 

 
 
at www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee 
23rd June 2025 

1 
 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 23RD JUNE 2025, AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors H. J. Jones (Chairman), S. J. Baxter, J. Clarke, 
D. J. A. Forsythe, E. M. S. Gray, C.A. Hotham (substituting  
for Councillor A. Bailes), R. E. Lambert, S. R. Peters, J. Robinson 
and J. D. Stanley 
 

 Officers: Mrs. R. Bamford, Mr. D. M. Birch, Mr. M. Howarth 
(of Anthony Collins Solicitors), Mr. A. Hussain (via Microsoft  
Teams), Mrs. J. Chambers and Mr. P. Lester, Mr. G. Nock (Of 
Worcestershire County Council Highways, via Microsoft Teams) 
and Mr. G. Day 
 

  
 
 

19/25   TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF 
SUBSTITUTES 
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor A. Bailes with 
Councillor C. A. Hotham in attendance as substitute. 
 
Apologies were also received from Councillor M. Marshall. 
 

20/25   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor E. M. S. Gray declared an Other Disclosable interest in 
relation to Agenda Item Number 5 (Minute No. 24//25) – 24/00529/S73 - 
Land at Whitford Road, Bromsgrove. Councillor E. M. S. Gray left the 
meeting room for the duration of this agenda item and took no part in the 
Committee’s consideration nor voting on this matter. 
 
Councillor J. Clarke declared an Other Disclosable interest in relation to 
Agenda Item Number 5 (Minute No. 24//25) – 24/00529/S73 - Land at 
Whitford Road, Bromsgrove. Councillor J. Clarke left the meeting room 
for the duration of this agenda item and took no part in the Committee’s 
consideration nor voting on this matter. 
 
Councillor J. Robinson declared an Other Disclosable interest in relation 
to Agenda Item Number 5 (Minute No. 24//25) – 24/00529/S73 - Land at 
Whitford Road, Bromsgrove. Councillor J. Robinson left the meeting 
room for the duration of this agenda item and took no part in the 
Committee’s consideration nor voting on this matter. 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



Planning Committee 
23rd June 2025 

2 
 

21/25   MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the Planning Committee meetings held on 22nd May 
2025 and 5th June 2025, were received. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee meetings held 
on 22nd May 2025 and 5th June 2025, be approved as correct records.  
 

22/25   UPDATES TO PLANNING APPLICATIONS REPORTED AT THE 
MEETING 
 
The Chairman announced that a Committee Update had been circulated 
to Members prior to the meeting commencing, with a paper copy also 
made available to Members at the meeting. 
 
Members indicated that they had sufficient time to read the contents of 
the Committee Update and were happy to proceed. 
 
The Chairman further announced that due to the change in the Officer 
Recommendation, as detailed on page 4 of the Committee Update 
Reports pack, that the running order of the meeting would be changed 
and that Agenda Item No. 6 would be considered first. 
 

23/25   24/00960/FUL - PROPOSED BATTERY ENERGY STORAGE SYSTEM 
(BESS) AND ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE. LAND OFF ILLEY 
LANE, HUNNINGTON. MR. G. WATSON 
 
At the invitation of the Chairman, the Planning Case Officer detailed that, 
a letter was sent to the Secretary of State dated 22nd June 2025, as 
detailed at Appendix A on page 5 of the Committee Update Reports 
pack. The letter had asked for an Environmental Impact Assessment 
(EIA) Screening Direction to be undertaken. 
 
Due to the outstanding request for the EIA Screening Direction and after 
consultation with legal advisors, the Officer recommendation was 
changed to a deferral pending a response being received from the letter 
and/or outcome of the EIA Screening Direction.  
 
On being put to a vote it was: 
 
RESOLVED that the application be deferred until the next available 
Planning Committee meeting following the issuing of an EIA Screening 
Direction by the Secretary of State in respect of planning application 
24/00960/FUL. 
 

24/25   25/00529/S73 - VARIATION OF CONDITION 25 OF PLANNING 
PERMISSION APP/P1805/W/20/3245111 ALLOWED ON APPEAL 
09/02/2021 (LPA 16/1132): FROM: NO PART OF THE DEVELOPMENT 
SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL THE JUNCTION OF FOX LANE/ ROCK 
HILL HAS BEEN ALTERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SCHEME 
FOR A ROUNDABOUT SHOWN ON THE PLAN FOX LANE/ ROCK HILL 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



Planning Committee 
23rd June 2025 

3 
 

SCHEMATIC REF 7033- SK-005 REVISION F  AMEND TO: NO MORE 
THAN 49 DWELLINGS (OF WHICH, NO MORE THAN 30 SHALL BE 
FOR PRIVATE SALE AND NO MORE THAN 19 SHALL BE FOR 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING) SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL THE 
JUNCTION OF FOX LANE/ROCK HILL HAS BEEN ALTERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE SCHEME FOR A ROUNDABOUT SHOWN 
ON THE PLAN FOX LANE/ROCK HILL SCHEMATIC SCHEME REF 
7033/SK-005 REVISION G AND ANCILLARY DRAWINGS 7033-S278-
701 REV C02, 2015804 AGE- ZZ�XX-DR-X-0002, 0003, 0004, 0005, 0006 
REV C02. LAND AT, WHITFORD ROAD, BROMSGROVE, 
WORCESTERSHIRE,. BELLWAY HOMES LTD 
 
Officers presented the report and in doing so highlighted that the 
application was for the variation of condition 25 of planning permission 
APP/P1805/W/20/3245111 allowed on appeal 09/02/2021 (LPA 
16/1132), as follows:- 
 
FROM: No part of the development shall be occupied until the junction of 
Fox Lane/ Rock Hill has been altered in accordance with the scheme for 
a roundabout shown on the plan Fox Lane/ Rock Hill schematic ref 
7033-SK-005 revision F. 
 
AMEND TO:  No more than 49 dwellings (of which, no more than 30 
shall be for private sale and no more than 19 shall be for affordable 
housing) shall be occupied until the junction of Fox Lane/Rock Hill has 
been altered in accordance with the scheme for a roundabout shown on 
the plan Fox Lane/Rock Hill schematic scheme ref 7033- SK-005 
revision G and ancillary drawings 7033-s278-701 rev C02, 2015804 
AGE- ZZXX-DR-X-0002, 0003, 0004, 0005, 0006 REV C02. 
 
Officers presented the presentation slides, as detailed on pages 47 to 61 
of the main agenda pack. Along with the additional comments from the 
Bromsgrove Society, as detailed on page 3 of the Committee Update 
Reports pack. 
 
In comparing the current proposal to the previously refused application 
24/00117/S73, heard on 25.04.2025, Officers detailed that the main 
proposed changes to Condition 25 were a plan revision update from 
Version F to G, the occupation of 49 dwellings combined with 
clarification on the breakdown of affordable and market housing offered 
by the application. Officers further detailed that the applicant was 
appealing the previous Member decision but had stated that, they would 
withdraw the appeal if Members were minded to approve the application 
before them. 
 
An independent consultancy specialist, Mott McDonald, had undertaken 
a review of the application and comments from the Highway Authority, 
and were in agreement with the assessment by Worcestershire County 
Council, Highways (County Highways). It was further clarified that there 
had been no change in the position of County Highways. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



Planning Committee 
23rd June 2025 

4 
 

Officers concluded that the occupation of 49 dwellings prior to the 
alteration of the Fox Lane / Rock Hill junction was considered acceptable 
with regards to planning policy and other material planning 
considerations. 
 
At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr. J. Gerner, on behalf of The 
Bromsgrove Society addressed the Committee in objection to the 
application. Mr. D. Dixon, the applicant’s agent, and Mr. G Anderson, 
Chief Executive Officer for Bromsgrove District Housing Trust (BDHT), 
addressed the Committee in support of the application. Councillor D. 
Hopkins, Ward Member, also addressed the Committee. 
 
Members then considered the application which Officers had 
recommend be granted. 
 
Members expressed the opinion that it was a very difficult decision with 
either outcome having a positive and negative impact that Members had 
to balance. The impact on the traffic network had to be compared 
against the supplied accommodation, which included 19 affordable 
housing units. Additionally, some of the dwellings were already 
occupied, giving an extra consideration of having to evict the residents if 
the application was refused. Members further commented that even 
though Bellway housing had caused the problem by breaching their 
Conditions, the Council would ultimately be blamed for the negative 
impact of their decision in either outcome. 
 
The accuracy of the traffic assessments was addressed and following 
clarifications from Mr. G. Nock of County Highways, it was clarified that: 
 

 The 1-day sample was consistent with assessments undertaken 
during all parts of the applications and was sufficient for the 
highways authority to give advice to Members. 

 County Highways had considered the evidence supplied by the 
Bromsgrove society, the findings of which could be found on page 
4 of the Committee Update Reports pack,. It was further noted 
that although it was not a complete data set there were some 
fluctuations in the data set. 

 The findings were scrutinised by Mott McDonald who were a 
third-party specialist, and that they were in agreement with the 
findings and methodology employed by County Highways. 

 It was explained to Members that the model calculates queues 
rather than queues being a direct input. Mr. Nock explained that 
no data had been removed from the modelling where the 
applicant’s transport consultant had identified an ‘anomaly’ with 
the queues recorded.  

 
In response, Members commented that they understood the findings of 
County Highways which they believed to be reasonable based on the 
traffic data supplied by the applicant. However, the problem lay with the 
data set which they had been supplied with. Members further 
commented that in their opinion the data was poor and should the traffic 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



Planning Committee 
23rd June 2025 

5 
 

data have been collected on a different day without any disruption to the 
road network noted in the area, County Highways and Mott McDonald 
may have arrived at a different result. Members also stated that in their 
opinion it would have been appropriate for the applicant to have 
repeated their survey following the last meeting to support their data and 
were disappointed that this had not happened. 
 
The applicant had indicated they would withdraw the appeal if the 
application were granted, however, it was clarified that there was no 
requirement for them to do so, and that if the appeal continued and was 
upheld the applicant could choose either application to enact. It was 
further clarified that regardless of this, Members were being asked to 
consider the application before them and that the state of the appeal 
should take no part in the decision for Members and that the application 
must be considered on its own merit.  
 
In weighing up all of the points, Members gave significant weight to the 
provision of homes for the residents of Bromsgrove district area and 
although there would be an impact on the local road network, some of 
that impact was already being felt due to a number of the properties 
already being occupied.  
 
Therefore, on being put to the vote it was: 
 
RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the 
conditions as detailed on page 45 of the Public Reports pack. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 6.52 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13

Agenda Item 5



Page 14

Agenda Item 5



Page 15

Agenda Item 5



Page 16

Agenda Item 5



Page 17

Agenda Item 5



Page 18

Agenda Item 5



Page 19

Agenda Item 5



Page 20

Agenda Item 5



Page 21

Agenda Item 5



Page 22

Agenda Item 5



Page 23

Agenda Item 5



Page 24

Agenda Item 5



Page 25

Agenda Item 5



Page 26

Agenda Item 5



Page 27

Agenda Item 5



Page 28

Agenda Item 5



Page 29

Agenda Item 5



Page 30

Agenda Item 5



Page 31

Agenda Item 5



Page 32

Agenda Item 5



Page 33

Agenda Item 5



Page 34

Agenda Item 5



Page 35

Agenda Item 5



Page 36

Agenda Item 5



Page 37

Agenda Item 5



Page 38

Agenda Item 5



Page 39

Agenda Item 5



Page 40

Agenda Item 5



Page 41

Agenda Item 5



Page 42

Agenda Item 5



Page 43

Agenda Item 5



Page 44

Agenda Item 5



Page 45

Agenda Item 5



Page 46

Agenda Item 5



Page 47

Agenda Item 5



Page 48

Agenda Item 5



Page 49

Agenda Item 5



Page 50

Agenda Item 5



Page 51

Agenda Item 5



Page 52

Agenda Item 5



Page 53

Agenda Item 5



Page 54

Agenda Item 5



Page 55

Agenda Item 5



Page 56

Agenda Item 5



Page 57

Agenda Item 5



Page 58

Agenda Item 5



Page 59

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 61

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 62

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 63

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 64

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 65

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 66

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 67

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 68

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 69

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 70

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 71

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 72

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 73

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 74

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 75

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 76

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 77

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 78

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 79

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 80

A
genda Item

 5


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 23rd June 2025.
	5 24/00960/FUL - Proposed Battery Energy Storage System (BESS) and associated infrastructure. Land Off Illey Lane, Hunnington. Mr. G. Watson (Grenergy Renewables UK)
	Officer Presentation - 24.00960.FUL - Land off Illey Lane


